
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
to be held on

THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2018
at

2.00 PM
in the

RIVER ROOM, JUBILEE CONFERENCE CENTRE, 1-5 LONDON 
ROAD, GRANTHAM. NG31 6EY

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Ian Stokes

Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Damian Evans
Councillor David Mapp (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Paul Wood

Committee Support
Officer:

Anita Eckersley Tel: 01476 406517
E-mail: a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

**PLEASE NOTE THE VENUE**

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2  APOLOGIES 

3  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at 
the meeting.



4  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2018 
(Pages 3 - 10)

(Enclosed)

5  UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

6  UPDATE ON THE PROGRESS OF THE FROZEN PIPES ISSUES 
(Pages 11 - 17)

Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing.
(Enclosed)

7  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 19 - 49)

Report of Internal Audit
(Enclosed)

8  INTERNAL AUDIT INDICATIVE PLAN 2019-20 (Pages 51 - 56)

Report of Internal Audit
(Enclosed)

9  REVIEW OF FRAUD PREVENTION ACTIVITIES (Pages 57 - 62)

Report CFM481 of the Cabinet Member for Finance.
(Enclosed)

10  TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW (Pages 63 - 70)

Report CFM475 of the Cabinet Member for Finance.
(Enclosed)

11  ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 



MINUTES
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 20 SEPTEMBER 2018

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor David Mapp (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Paul Wood

CABINET MEMBERS
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member For Finance

AUDIT
Head Of Internal Audit – RSM (Chris Williams)
Senior Manager – RSM (Amjad Ali)

OFFICERS
Assistant Director – Resources (Richard Wyles)
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey Elliott)
Solicitor to the Council (Lucy Youles)
Service Manager – Responsive Housing Repairs – (Phil Longhorn)
Projects Officer M&E (Trevor Thomas)
Assistant Chief Executive (Lee Sirdifield)
Head of Organisational Development (Elaine Pepper)
Civic and Democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley)

22. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Damian Evans.

23. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

24. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25 JULY 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018 were proposed, seconded 
and agreed as a correct record.

3

Agenda Item 4



25. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

An update in respect of the issues experienced with frozen pipes during the 
winter was an item on the agenda.

26. UPDATE TO MEMBERS ON THE ISSUE OF FROZEN CONDENSATE PIPES 
OVER THE RECENT COLD PERIOD.

Concern was expressed about the content of the report sent out with the 
agenda and clarification was sought on how faults were reported to the Council, 
how quickly these were dealt with and what was being done to ensure that 
residents would not be in the same position this coming winter.  The Service 
Manager for Responsive Housing Repairs was invited to elaborate on the 
submitted report on frozen condensate pipes over the colder period during last 
winter.

He reported that the boilers had been installed in line with the manufacturer’s 
instructions at the time of install. The manufacturer had subsequently changed 
the installation instructions which meant that boilers installed 9 years ago would 
not comply with the current installation instructions but did comply at the time of 
install. The boilers had been robustly tested for 3 hours at 15 degrees below 
zero.  

The Projects Officer M&E explained that the size of the condensate pipes had 
been identified as the issue. These had been changed to a larger size 
condensate pipe but this may not solve the long term problem. Members were 
provided with a copy of a photograph showing one of the larger pipes with 
insulation in place.  The Council had a rolling boiler programme.  Around 250 
boilers would be replaced in a year and those who suffered with a frozen 
condensate could be factored into the boiler programme for the maintenance 
and replacement of boilers with other issues or had reached their life 
expectancy limit. 

In response to a query about the number of boilers to be replaced, the 
Committee was informed that 4000 boilers where the current condensing 
boilers fitted the manufacturer’s installation instructions but around 700 were 
non condensing types.  It was emphasised that the boilers at the time of 
installation did fully comply with the instructions as set by the manufacturers.

Concerns were raised on the length of time it would take to complete the 
programme and a Member queried whether a separate programme had been 
considered that would run alongside the current boiler programme rather than 
being included in the programme.

Members discussed the issues with the condensate pipes, how this had been a 
national issue and whether a conversation had been had with the 
manufacturers to replace them all as it was surely a manufacturing or design 
fault that should have been dealt with by the manufacturer and not left to the 

4



Council to resolve.  A query was raised on how other local authorities were 
dealing with this issue and whether any local authorities had been contacted to 
ascertain how they had dealt with the problem.

Further discussion took place on the life time for a boiler, what the other issues 
were, access to properties to resolve issues, whether the Local Government 
Association had been contacted to find out whether this issue had been 
identified as a national problem for other local authorities, the length of time 
over which the issue had been known, the placement of pipes in some 
properties and whether there was a way of resolving the issue short term. 

The Committee noted that the manufacturer was a well-known respected 
company of repute and would surely want to be involved in the resolving of the 
issue.  This was an important issue that needed to be resolved as a matter of 
urgency for residents.  The Committee would need to receive details of what 
was being done to address the issues and be provided with a timeframe this 
would need to be in addition to the general repair programme.  

The Service Manager for Responsive Housing Repairs acknowledged the 
Committee’s concerns and noted that contact would be made with the 
manufacturer along with the LGA and other local authorities. 

In conclusion, the Committee considered this matter should be referred to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee and that this 
Committee would need to be kept informed of the outcomes from their scrutiny.

Decisions:

a) That the issue of the frozen pipes is referred to the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee for scrutiny, and 

b) That the Governance and Audit Committee receive an update at the 
December meeting on progress together with a detailed timeframe of 
how the issue of frozen pipes was going to be resolved.  The Committee 
also asked for a report to be presented at the meeting in December 
detailing what contact had been made with the manufacturer and the 
Local Government Association (LGA).

27. OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

The Solicitor to the Council summarised report number LDS314 which informed 
the Committee about the contents of the Ombudsman Annual Review Letter for 
2017/18 and was appended to the report. She explained there had been 15 
complaints received by the Ombudsman for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 
2018. The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) had made 14 decisions 
relating to the services provided by the Council. One of the decisions related to 
a complaint made in the period before 1 April 2017.

5



Out of the 14 decisions made during the period covered, 8 were referred back 
to the Council for local resolution.  Three of the 6 remaining decisions had been 
closed after initial enquiries. The last 3 had been subject to investigation by the 
Ombudsman. One of the 3 complaints investigated was upheld and resolved by 
the Local Government Ombudsman. The upheld complaint related to the 
service and evidence of posting notices for a planning application. The LGO 
recommendation was an apology to the complainant and the retention of 
evidence that the posting of notices had been carried out. 

One complaint that was not upheld related to planning and development; the 
LGO found that the Council’s processes in response to an alleged breach of 
planning conditions had been appropriate and carried out correctly. The second 
complaint that was not upheld related to a determination of intentional 
homelessness.

Out of the 15 complaints made, 7 related to Planning and Development, 3 
related to Corporate Services, 4 related to Housing and 1 related to Benefits 
and Tax. There had been an overall increase in the number of complaints of 2 
from the previous reporting period.

Members commented on some of the terminology contained in the letter but 
acknowledged that the letter was probably a standardised template. The 
Solicitor to the Council commented that the LGO was in the process of 
changing the format of the letter and annual reporting to local authorities.

Decision:

Following due consideration of the Local Government Ombudsman Annual 
Review letter for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018, the Governance 
and Audit Committee noted the contents of the Ombudsman Annual Report 
2017/18.

28. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Assistant Director for Resources introduced report CFM471 which provided 
the Committee with a summary of the results of the work undertaken by the 
Internal Audit Service. The report covered the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 
August 2018.  The Committee was reminded that under the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit was required to provide an 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s risk 
management, control and governance processes.

Chris Williams the Head of Internal Audit from RSM presented the Internal 
Audit Progress Report. He informed Members that Internal Audit was on 
schedule and that the findings were detailed in the report. 

The Committee was informed that 33% of the Assignments had been 
completed, 6% of the Assignments were in draft a further 6% were in progress 
and the remaining 55% of the assignments were not yet due.   

6



Details of the positive opinion were contained within the RSM report but overall 
the Council had an effective framework for risk management, governance and 
internal control. The opinion was based on the assurances given to audits that 
had been undertaken during the reporting period together with the 
implementation of actions agreed with management.

The reports submitted for consideration for today’s Committee were:

 Pre-application Fees: (reasonable assurance, impact on the Annual opinion: 
positive, with 2 medium and 2 low priority actions agreed)

(The medium priority findings related to 9 out of 20 samples tested not 
meeting the 20 day response deadline, and
Reconciliations and recording of actual and determined fees)

 Non Domestic Rates (NDR): (substantial assurance, impact on the Annual 
opinion: positive, with 2 low priority actions agreed)

 CCTV (substantial assurance, impact on the Annual opinion: positive, with 1 
low priority action agreed)

 Recruitment and Selection: (reasonable assurance, impact on the Annual 
opinion: positive, with 3 medium and 5 low priority actions agreed)

(Copies of scoring sheets for 3 out of 8 new starters not on file;
No references on file for eight new starters, and two instances where only 
one reference was on file, and
No evidence of Recruitment training being delivered for staff involved with 
the recruitment process)

 Rent Collection arrears: (reasonable assurance, impact on the Annual 
opinion: positive, with 3 medium actions agreed)
(Actions relating to 4 out of 20 arrears cases identified as not being 
undertaken on a timely basis;
Letters advising of rent increases did not include a full date and therefore 
had not provided the required 28 days’ notice period, and
Signing off of a “write-off” was not authorised by a delegated authority for 
one out of 15 “write-“off samples)

Discussion took place on the 9 samples that related to pre-application fees and 
the reasons why an application could be delayed such as seeking information 
from a third party or further information from the applicant, the need to manage 
expectations, record and keep the customer informed. Also discussed was how 
samples were chosen and supplied and the length of time for each audit.

Following consideration of the Recruitment and Retention Audit and whether it 
had included an audit on the employment of consultants and the potential tax 
implications, the Committee was informed that the audit related to full and part 

7



time staff.  Further clarification was sought on whether an audit could be 
undertaken on the employment of temporary staffing resources and it was 
noted that it was within the Committee’s remit to request further work.

Further discussion took place on the reasons why score sheets and references 
had not been on file and what actions had been agreed and implemented to 
ensure this was captured in future. Also discussed was the appropriateness of 
the time frame for erasing CCTV, the implications of erasing CCTV in respect of 
subsequent requests by the police.

Decisions:

a) The Governance and Audit Committee agreed that the Internal Auditors 
be tasked with undertaking an audit regarding the employment of 
temporary staffing resources, and

b) That the Assistant Director for Resources be tasked with scoping this 
piece of work with the auditors.

29. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 2018-2020

The Assistant Director for Resources presented Report CFM469 of the Cabinet 
Member for Finance. The report outlined the areas of review undertaken to 
ensure that the Risk Management framework captured and was compliant with 
the revised ISO Standards.  The Framework was last updated and approved by 
Committee in 2015.

The Risk Management Framework provided details of the risk environment the 
Council operated in together with the controls and mechanisms in place to 
ensure risk was sufficiently managed by Members and officers.  

The 2018 version was very similar to the original version.  The main changes 
were:

 Risk Management Procedural Guidance.  This was updated to reflect 
revised risk management principles and now included fraud as a type of 
risk

 Risk Management Governance Framework. The categories of risk and 
associated stages of the management and reporting of each category 
have been updated to reflect the current procedures

 Risk Management Process. The description of how risk categories were 
evaluated, scored and managed and how risks were escalated depending 
on their likelihood and impact, had been updated. These were now 
presented as a set of iterative steps to be undertaken in a coordinated 
manner, but not necessarily in a strict sequence

 Risk Categories: Cyber risk was now included in the detailing of corporate 
and business categories as one of the most significant risks used for the 

8



compilation of the risk register to ensure consistency of terminology

 Roles and Responsibilities, outlining the various roles for both Members 
and officers throughout the Council and the level of responsibility for that 
role, had been reviewed to reflect any changes within the Authority

 Glossary, included to assist the reader of the framework in respect of any 
wording that may appear unclear in the context of risk management, was 
unchanged

The Assistant Director for Resources commented that Appendix A would, in 
future be presented in a format and style that was more engaging to the reader.

Decisions:

The Governance and Audit Committee acknowledged the comprehensive 
nature of the report and approved the updated review of the Risk Management 
Framework attached as Appendix A to the report.

30. COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2020 (INCLUDING THE 
COUNTER FRAUD STRATEGY)

The Assistant Director for Resources presented Report CFM470 Counter Fraud 
Annual Report 2017-18 which included the Counter Fraud Strategy 2018-2020.  
The report set out the key outcomes from the counter fraud work delivered 
during the course of the year relating to both welfare/benefit fraud and non-
welfare/benefit fraud. Counter fraud was fundamental to the Council being able 
to achieve its strategic objectives.  The report covered the financial year 2017-
18 and detailed various aspects of work delivered during the course of the year.

The key activities looked at were: The Fraud Risk Register, identification of 
weaknesses in the Right To Buy process, procurement and the work 
undertaken with the Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership (LCFP). Reference 
was also made within the report to an increase in whistleblowing which was 
triaged through the County Council.

The Committee was signposted to the current actions being undertaken:

The development of a dedicated fraud webpage on the Council’s website.  
This informed members of the public of types of fraud, the implications, 
advice and guidance on how to protect themselves from fraud and who to 
contact should they be a victim. The webpage also provided up-to-date 
information on current scams and alerts 

The participation stock take being undertaken by Local Government 
Association on cyber security 

Raising awareness amongst Council staff, stakeholders and partners 
about the risk of fraud in all areas of the Council’s business

Ongoing work with the Lincolnshire County Fraud Partnership in respect 
of the delivery of their action plan

9



The Council’s commitment to the 2018/19 National Fraud Initiative Data 
matching exercises

Continued work to support the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) 
in respect of Housing Benefit investigations

Keeping up-to-date with national developments in counter fraud work so 
that the Council was able to respond positively to new ideas, initiatives 
and examples of best practice

Discussion took place on the national cyber security stocktake, the increase in 
whistleblowing, the implications, reasons and types of whistleblowing, the 
subletting of Council properties, whether subletting of private rental 
accommodation was included, the ways in which whistleblowing was dealt with 
and safeguarding issues.

In response to a Member’s query about whether the Council received details of 
fraud from other sources, it was noted that a report on a current fraud 
investigation would be brought to the next meeting of the Committee.

Decision:

That the Governance and Audit Committee approve the Counter Fraud Annual 
Report in respect of the financial year 2017-18 together with the Counter Fraud 
Strategy 2018-20.

31. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 3.26pm.

10



GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Nick Neilson
Cabinet Member for Housing

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Governance & Audit Committee

13 December 2018

Update to Members on the issue of frozen condensate pipes 
over the recent cold period.

Decision
Proposal:

For information only

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Nick Neilson
Cabinet Member for Housing

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Andrew Sweeney
Head of Improvements & Repairs
A.Sweeney@southkesteven.gov.uk
Tel 01476 406411
Date:23 November 2018

Harrinder Rai
Assistant Director- Housing
harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk
Tel 01476 406299
Date: 26 November 2018

Paul Thomas
Strategic Director- Growth
P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
Tel 01476 406162
Date: 27 November 2018

Councillor Nick Neilson
Cabinet Member for Housing
N.Nelison@southkesteven.gov.uk
Tel: 01476 406408 
Date: 29 November 2018

11

Agenda Item 6

mailto:A.Sweeney@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:P.Thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:N.Nelison@southkesteven.gov.uk


SUMMARY
During the recent cold spell, the Council received 333 reports of frozen condensate pipes, 
this represents 7% of the council’s stock that have been fitted with domestic gas heating 
systems. The actual number of frozen pipes was 215 and the remainder were related to 
time controls or radiator valves.

At their meeting of 22nd March 2018 members of the Governance & Audit Committee 
raised concerns relating to the number of callouts during the recent cold spell due to 
issues dealing with frozen condensate pipes.

Members resolved that they be provided with a further update on how the issue arose 
and what options there were to remedy the fault.

In addition, members asked how the Council acts on the information received from the 
gas contractor, how this information is sent to the Council and what procedure is in place 
to deal with it.

A number of updates have been provided:

 At their March meeting; members were updated on the contract monitoring 
process in place and the frequent contract meetings that take place with Liberty 
on operational issues,

 In July; an update was provided on the monitoring of Liberty and the issues 
experienced with the frozen condensate pipes during the winter 

 The Committee were informed that an update report would be presented to their 
next meeting, to provide greater detail on the work being undertaken to mitigate 
the risk of the issues arising again in the future.

 In September; a further update report was presented to the Governance & Audit 
committee. At this meeting, however, members requested that contact be made 
with a variety of other stakeholders/partners to seek further advice on resolving 
this issue.  

RECOMMENDATION

That Members of the Governance & Audit Committee:
Consider and note the update provided in regards to the issues relating to the frozen 
condensate pipes and the contract monitoring arrangements for the gas services 
contract. 

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 During the recent cold spell, the Council received 333 reports of frozen 
condensate pipes, this represents 7% of the council’s stock that have been fitted 
with domestic gas heating systems. The actual number of frozen pipes was 215 
and the remainder were related to time controls or radiator valves.

12



1.2 All properties affected by frozen condensate pipes were dealt with within a 5-day 
period, with a majority been addressed within a 3-day period.

1.3 In regards to the cost of dealing with the frozen pipes, the current contract with 
Liberty includes dealing with frozen condensates, therefore financially there was 
no additional cost incurred, however, there were clear implications for some of 
our tenants who had no heating during the period the boilers were inoperative 
whilst frozen. 

1.4 The current contract contains a clause relating to frozen condensates, which will 
remain for the duration of the contract (expires March 2022, with a possible 2 
years’ extension) and will be included in any future contracts.

1.5 The boilers that are used are Worcester Bosch that are tested to -15 degrees for 
a 3-hour period by the manufacturer. This represents the higher level of extreme 
testing. However, during the period when the condensate pipes froze the wind 
chill factor in the evening temperatures in South Kesteven dropped well below 
this figure. (-15 to -22). 

1.6 The report of 20th September 2018 updated members that in response to these 
events, members were asked to note the following action points designed to 
mitigate the problems incurred: -

 All boilers have been installed according to manufacturer’s instructions. 
Where possible this includes terminating condensate pipes internally to 
eradicate the risk of freezing. Where this is not possible pipes are run as close 
to vertical as possible. 

 For the boilers that were affected by extreme temperatures, officers will be 
looking to install devices to enable the water to be discharged internally by 
the tenant and/or heat tracers on the equipment to heat the pipe. The pipes 
have been repaired using a compressed connection unit rather than a 
soldered connection to allow easy disconnection and discharge of 
condensation in the pipe internally if an issue arises in the future.

 The manufacturers have altered the design of the condensate outlet, from 
trickle feed to a volume dump, (smaller volumes have more potential to 
freeze). The increase of the pipe from 21.5mm to 32mm, will provide further 
resilience to any freezing.

 All new fitted boilers have a condensate trap that sits around the heating flow 
pipe. Therefore, when the heating is on, it heats the pipe so that the water is 
discharged at a higher temperature to reduce the risk of freezing.

1.7 Since the meeting of 20th September 2018 a number of further actions have been 
undertaken: -

 Officers formally wrote to Worcester Bosh (WB) on 2nd October 2018 to 
highlight the issues that arose. This resulted in a number of inspections to 
some of the affected properties been carried out with an auditor from WB 
present. The boilers were found to be installed to meet all of the 
manufacturer’s instructions, with the external pipe below the recommended 

13



maximum, however, due to the elevation in which the pipe exited the building 
it became more prone to the elements causing it to freeze. Remedial work is 
already underway to resolve this issue.

 A discussion and resolution session with Liberty Gas has identified that the 
majority of the affected properties had the discharge pipe more exposed to 
the northerly and easterly winds, which carried the brunt of the cold weather 
earlier this year. Physical mitigation to protect these pipes has been agreed 
with Liberty, and in addition a post inspection process to ensure all boilers are 
fitted to the manufactures instructions has been improved on..

 SKDC are part of the Direct Works Forum (DWF), a group of councils that 
retain their housing repairs labour force in-house. The Council contacted the 
DWF, who confirmed that many councils within the forum had also been 
affected by the cold weather and freezing pipes, and that actions identified in 
section 1.6 were similar to the actions others councils were also undertaking 
to mitigate the problem. 

 Officers contacted the Gas Safety Register (previously Corgi) and their 
Technical Safety Manager confirmed that measures can be taken to mitigate 
the problem, however under extreme and severe weather conditions it is not 
always a guarantee, they advised that wrapping the pipe in a foam based 
lagging is a good mitigation. The council currently does wrap all risk exposed 
pipework in a foam based lagging.

 Additional research has been undertaken in ways to maximise the mitigation 
of freezing pipes and six areas have been highlighted that will help with 
preventing frozen condensates. These are:

1.8 Reduce the Outside Pipe – when the heating upgrade surveys are completed it 
is recommended that the condense pipe takes the shortest external route. A 
maximum length of 3M is recommended by Worcester Bosch.

Action: 

The recommendation will apply to all heating systems via a programme of 
surveys and remedial works.

1.9 Install a Syphon Trap - With any Worcester Greenstar boiler fitted before April 
2013 the condensate would leave the boiler at approximately 100ml at a time, at 
temperatures between approximately 10˚C and 40˚C, depending on the length of 
time the boiler was running and the temperature set. 

Actions: 

We will be fitting a Worcester Condensure unit (see image below), that has 
been fitted to some programmed replacement boilers between 1st April 13 
and present, this allows for the condensate to be held in a larger trap and 
discharged in a larger volume. These units will initially be fitted to the 116 
properties which contain a Greenstar Boiler installed before the 
manufacturer’s redesign that were affected by the cold weather, as they 
have been identified as those which trickle dump the condensate. 

14



Officers will Identify any further issues and fit them as part of any service 
or repair to the remaining 1815 properties with the similar aged boiler

Where appropriate we will install a condense pump (see image below), and 
either connect into the existing condensate pipe resulting in 0.8 litres being 
discharged at any one time, or re-routing the pipework to an internal soil or 
waste pipe via the roof void:

1.10 Increase External Pipe Size – following the previous freeze in 2010/11 a 
programme was put in place to increase the condensate externally run pipe size 
on all of the properties identified from the gas service programme with the 
19.5mm plastic pipe, also ensuring that any subsequent boiler installation had 
the larger bore external condense pipe.

Action:

This is already in place and the external pipe is extended to 32mm.

1.11 Insulate – As shown, even when insulated, the pipework still froze, this also 
comes with an additional issue with the fact that if the incorrect insulation is used 
this could perish in the external exposure.

Action:

Already in place.

1.12 Gravity – all of the external condensate pipes fitted during the boiler programmes 
are done so to ensure that there is either a constant fall or the pipe is fitted 
vertically to a drain or soakaway.

Action:

Ongoing programme

15



1.13 Use of a Trace Pipe – this is an electric heater cable which will wrap around the 
plastic condense pipe to heat the pipe and the fluid passing through it. Whilst it 
may heat the fluid, it could potentially heat into the plastic pipe and lead to a 
possible fire.

Action:

On-going programme.

1.14 Whilst there can be no guarantee that pipes will not freeze during very extreme 
and severe cold weather, it is considered that the actions proposed will 
significantly improve the positon and mitigate the possibility of the pipes freezing 
during a normal cold spell.

Contract monitoring meetings will continue with the gas services contractor on a 
monthly basis. The regular contract meetings cover operational, technical and 
performance matters and monthly valuations and payments. Issues arising from 
lessons learned also form part of the discussions when necessary and quarterly 
‘open book’ contract meetings are also held with the contractor.

1.15 This risk will remain on the operational register as a ‘high risk’ to ensure that the 
service continues to manage the risk and constantly ensures that new systems 
are fitted correctly and that those actions proposed are delivered. 

2. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report. The additional 
monitoring and dealing with concerns will be met from existing resources. The 
HRA capital programme has allocated budgets for major improvement works 
including heating systems. Any additional work identified will be allocated from 
the overall HRA capital programme.

3. RISK AND MITIGATION 

3.1    Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls

4. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

4.1 None

5. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

5.1 None

16



6. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

6.1 The current contract is subject to pre- approved maintenance rates and boiler 
replacement values. As mentioned in section 1.7 regular contract meetings 
include agreeing monthly valuations and payments in line with the contract terms.

7. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

7.1 The contract with Liberty Gas covers annual gas safety maintenance and the 
replacement boiler programme. Clauses in the contract exist for the Council to 
take action to address poor performance by the contractor.

8. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

8.1 None

9. APPENDICES

9.1 None

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

10.1    None

17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Internal Audit Progress Report 

Governance and Audit Committee 

13 December 2018 
 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP  
will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party.

Page 1 of 31

19

Agenda Item 7



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 1 

CONTENTS 

 
1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Reports considered at this Governance and Audit Committee .................................................................................... 3 

3 Looking ahead .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

4 Other matters ............................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Appendix A: Internal audit assignments completed to date .............................................................................................. 8 

For further information contact .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 31

20



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 2 

The internal audit plan for 2018/19 was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 22 March 2018. Below 
provides a summary update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. Please see 
chart below for current progress with the plan.  

 

 

56% 11% 11% 22%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

1

Assignments Complete Assignments in Draft Assignments in Progress Assignments Not Yet Due

1 INTRODUCTION 

Page 3 of 31

21



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 3 

This table informs of the audit assignments that have been completed and the impacts of those findings since the last 
Governance and Audit Committee held. The Executive Summary and Key Findings of the assignments below are 
attached to this progress report.  

Assignments Status Opinion issued Actions agreed  

   H M L 

Land Charges (8.18/19) Final 

 

0 2 2 

Members Allowances and Expenses 
(9.18/19) 

Final 

 

0 2 1 

Purchase Orders and Creditors 
(10.18/19) 

Final 

 

0 1 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 REPORTS CONSIDERED AT THIS GOVERNANCE 
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 4 of 31

22



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 4 

2.1 Impact of findings to date 

 

Land Charges (8.18/19) 

Conclusion: Reasonable Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing, two medium and two low priority actions were identified. Management actions 
were agreed in respect of these findings. 

The medium priority findings were in relation to: 

 5/15 registrations were added to the register between 30 and 215 days after the notification was 
received. We were informed by the Senior Land Charges Officer that there was previously a 
significant backlog within the department which has now been cleared. There is no defined filing 
system to be able to keep track of notifications received, with documents being kept in various 
electronic folders and hard copies left on desks in no particular order. 

 There is no independent check of registrations which have been added to or removed from the 
register to confirm that the change has been made accurately and appropriately.  

 

Members Allowances and Expenses (9.18/19) 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing, two medium and one low priority actions were identified. Management actions 
were agreed in respect of these findings.  

The medium priority findings were in relation to: 

 In accordance with public disclosure requirements, all Members Allowances and Expenses 
claimed are required to be published by the Council on its website and in the local press and are 
to be made available for scrutiny. However, on review of the Council’s website it was 
established that this information is yet to be published for 2017/18.  

 For a sample of 20 Members, testing of the 47 claims made by these Members during the 
period 1 April 2018 to 31 August 2018 established that the claims were not being made on a 
timely basis. 

Page 5 of 31

23



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 5 

 

Purchase Orders and Creditors (10.18/19) 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing, one medium and one low priority management actions were identified. 
Management actions were agreed in respect of these findings. 

The medium priority finding was in relation to: 

 Testing a sample of 20 paid purchase invoices found seven instances where a purchase order 
had been raised after an order for goods or services had been placed with the relevant supplier.  

Page 6 of 31

24



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 6 

Assignment area Timing per 
approved IA 
Plan 2018/19 

Status Target Governance 
and Audit Committee 
per the IA Plan 
2018/19 

Temporary Staffing (11.18/19) (Additional Audit) N/A Draft report issued 
19 November 2018 

N/A 

Construction Regulations (12.18/19) Quarter 2 Draft report issued 
23 November 2018 

13 December 2018 

Fire Safety Quarter 3 In Progress 21 March 2019 

Payroll and Expenses Quarter 3 In Progress 21 March 2019 

Follow Up Quarter 3 Not started 21 March 2019 

IT Review Quarter 3 Not started 21 March 2019 

Corporate Governance Quarter 4 Not started 21 March 2019 

Housing Benefits (Including Electronic Benefits) Quarter 4 Not started 21 March 2019 

 

3 LOOKING AHEAD 

Page 7 of 31

25



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 7 

4.1 Changes to the audit plan  
Following discussion with management it has been agreed to defer the ‘Programmes and Performance Management 
audit until 2019/20. In addition, an Advisory review of GDPR has been undertaken and eight management actions 
have been raised for the Council to consider. 

At the request of Members, we have been requested to undertake a ‘Temporary Staff’ audit review which is currently 
at the draft report issued stage. 

4.2 Quality Assurance and Continual Improvement  

To ensure that RSM remains compliant with the PSIAS framework we have a dedicated internal Quality Assurance 
Team who undertake a programme of reviews to ensure the quality of our audit assignments. This is applicable to all 
Heads of Internal Audit, where a sample of their clients will be reviewed. Any findings from these reviews being used 
to inform the training needs of our audit teams. 

The Quality Assurance Team is made up of: Ross Wood (Manager, Quality Assurance Department) with support from 
other team members across the Department. All reports are reviewed by James Farmbrough as the Head of the 
Quality Assurance Department. 

This is in addition to any feedback we receive from our post assignment surveys, client feedback, appraisal processes 
and training needs assessments. 
 

4.3 Post Assignment Surveys  
We are committed to delivering an excellent client experience every time we work with you. Your feedback helps us to 
improve the quality of the service we deliver to you. Currently, following the completion of each product we deliver we 
attached a brief survey for the client lead to complete.  

We would like to give you the opportunity to consider how frequently you receive these feedback requests; and 
whether the current format works. Options available are: 

 After each product (current option); 
 Monthly / quarterly / annual feedback request; and 
 Executive lead only, or executive lead and key team members. 

 

 

 

  

4 OTHER MATTERS 

Page 8 of 31

26



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 8 

APPENDIX A: INTERNAL AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 
COMPLETED TO DATE 
Report previously seen by the Governance and Audit Committee and included for information purposes only: 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed 

H M L 

Follow Up 1 (1.18/19) Final  Reasonable progress 0 1 2 

Pre-Application Fees (2.18/19) Final 

 

0 2 2 

NNDR (3.18/19) Final 

 

0 0 2 

CCTV (5.18/19) Final 

 

0 0 1 

Recruitment and Retention (6.18/19) Final 

 

0 3 5 

Rent Collection and Arrears (7.18/19) Final 

 

0 3 0 

 

 

Page 9 of 31

27



 

rsmuk.com 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject 
to its ethical and other professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-
standards-and-guidance. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are 
not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should not be 
taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We 
emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should 
not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied upon to 
identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes 
set out herein. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party 
wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any third 
party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in 
respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature 
which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 
 
This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save 
as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 
6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal 
Audit 

chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

Address: 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Suite A, 7th Floor 
City Gate East 
Tollhouse Hill 
Nottingham NG1 5FS 

Phone: 01159 644450 
Mobile: 07753 584993 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Page 10 of 31

28



 

  South Kesteven District Council Land Charges 8.18/19 

1.1 Background  
A review of Land Charges was undertaken at South Kesteven District Council ('the Council') as part of the approved 
internal audit periodic plan for 2018/19. 

Land Charges are obligations or restrictions placed against a property or piece of land, such as tree preservation 
orders or listed building status. Some charges, such as Disabled Facilities Grants, mean that if the resident vacates 
the property within a specific time period they are required to repay a sum to the Council for improvement and 
adaptation works which have been carried out. Registration notifications are received from a variety of sources 
including the Council's Planning Department and other authorities. 

A Local Land Charges Register is maintained by every local authority in England and Wales (with the exception of 
County Councils) and the Council has a statutory duty under the Local Land Charges Act 1975 to maintain an 
accurate and up to date Register of Local Land Charges affecting property and land within its area. 

Searches and enquiries can be made against the register to identify entries against a specific property and there is a 
fee for this service. Fees are approved annually by Council as part of the budget setting process and the Land 
Charges Team confirm that the correct fee has been received prior to responding to any search enquiries. Between 1 
April 2018 and 22 August 2018, the Council received 800 search requests and has responded to 774 at the time of 
audit. 

The Land Charges Team consists of four members of staff who manage the register including adding and removing 
registrations. Certain registrations expire after a set time, such as Decent Homes Grants, and the Team will consult 
the relevant department to confirm that the entry can be removed prior to taking it off of the register. 

 

1.2 Conclusion  
Through review of the control framework surrounding the management of Land Charges at South Kesteven District 
Council we have confirmed that controls are well designed and suitably complied with. However, weaknesses have 
been identified resulting in the agreement of four management actions, consisting of two 'medium' and two 'low' priority 
management actions relating to procedural guidance, the communication of approved fees, and the timely update and 
independent review of changes to the register,  

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take reasonable assurance that the controls in place to 
manage this risk are suitably designed and consistently 
applied. 
 
However, we have identified issues that need to be 
addressed in order to ensure that the control framework is 
effective in managing the identified risk(s). 

 

  

LAND CHARGES - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 11 of 31

29



 

  South Kesteven District Council Land Charges 8.18/19 

1.3 Key findings 
The key findings from this review are as follows: 

• 5/15 registrations were added to the register between 30 and 215 days after the notification was received. We were 
informed by the Senior Land Charges Officer that there was previously a significant backlog within the department 
which has now been cleared. There is no defined filing system to be able to keep track of notifications received, with 
documents being kept in various electronic folders and hard copies left on desks in no particular order. (Medium) 

• There is no independent check of registrations which have been added to or removed from the register to confirm 
that the change has been made accurately and appropriately. (Medium) 

• There is no overarching procedure note to outline the overall process of managing Land Charges to help staff 
understand the end-to-end process. 

• The 2018/19 approved fees are not appropriately communicated on the Council's website, which shows a 
combination of 2017/18 fees and 2018/19 fees. 

Areas of compliance with controls include: 

• Up-to-date procedure notes are available to the Land Charges Team in relation to adding registrations to the 
register. The guidance reflects actual practice which was confirmed through walkthrough of the process. 

• A Registrations Spreadsheet is maintained with details of registrations which have been added and removed, as the 
Land Charges system does not provide a report or audit trail of this. 

• Registrations in relation to planning applications and S106 Agreements are automatically pulled through into the 
Land Charges system once they have been entered into the Planning system. Other sources of notifications include 
the Council's Environmental Health Department and other local authorities. 

• A standard form is used internally for Council departments to inform the Land Charges Team of potential 
registrations to help ensure that key information is provided. 

• The Land Charges Team assess each potential registration prior to adding it to the register and liaise with the 
relevant department or agency if further information is needed. 

• Testing of a sample of 15 registrations added in the current financial year confirmed that supporting documentation 
was on file for all 15 and that the register accurately reflected the documentation in all instances. 

• The Land Charges Team consult the relevant department or agency prior to removing any registrations from the 
register. Testing of a sample of 10 removals confirmed that supporting documentation was on file and the entry was 
removed appropriately. 

• The 2018/19 Land Charges fees were approved by full Council at the meeting on 1 March 2018 as part of the 
annual budget setting process. 

• Searches of the Local Land Charges Register are requested using standard, official legal forms. Land Charges 
Officers confirm that the correct fee has been received prior to processing any search requests. Testing of a sample 
of 20 search transactions confirmed that the correct fee was received prior to search results being provided to the 
customer. 

Page 12 of 31

30



 

  South Kesteven District Council Land Charges 8.18/19 

• The Land Charges Team aims to respond to search requests within 10-20 working days of receipt of the correct fee 
and completed application form. Testing of the sample of 20 search transactions confirmed that all 20 were 
responded to within 10 days. 

• Access to the Land Charges system is suitably restricted to members of staff in relevant job roles. 

• The Senior Land Charges Officer attends an annual conference hosted by the Local Land Charges Institute (LLCI) 
and feeds back any information to the rest of the team. The team attend refresher training on an ad-hoc basis and 
have access to the LLCI website and other resources. 

• Reports are generated on a daily basis to enable the team to monitor their workload and to measure their average 
response time to search queries. Search responses statistics are collated and provided to the Development 
Manager on a monthly basis. 

 

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area. 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

Risk Control 
design not 
effective* 

Non-
compliance 
with controls* 

Agreed management actions 

Low Medium High 

The Land Charge Register is not accurate 
and up to date. 

1 (11) 3 (11) 2 2 0 

Total  
 

2 2 0 

Page 13 of 31

31



 

  South Kesteven District Council Land Charges 8.18/19 

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those risks of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Risk: The Land Charge Register is not accurate and up to date. 

1 Up to date guidance 
notes are available to 
staff in relation to the 
management of land 
charges. 

Yes No It was noted that there is no 
overarching procedure note to set out 
the overall process for managing 
registrations, particularly in relation to 
receiving and responding to search 
enquiries or for removing registrations 
from the register.  

An overarching procedure note to set 
out the overall process would help 
new staff learn the role and provide 
guidance to perform role 
responsibilities accurately and 
effectively.  

Low We will produce an 
overarching procedure note 
to provide guidance and an 
overview of the whole 
process of managing land 
charges. 

The procedure note will 
cover all stages including 
entering and responding to 
search queries and removing 
registrations and charges 
from the register. 

31 December 
2018 

Senior Land 
Charges 
Officer 

Page 14 of 31

32



 

  South Kesteven District Council Land Charges 8.18/19 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

2 Registrations are 
applied accurately and 
supporting 
documentation is kept 
on file to evidence the 
charge. 

Yes No A Registration Spreadsheet is 
maintained with details of registrations 
which have been added and removed 
from the register as the system does 
not provide an audit trail of these 
transactions.   

Testing of a sample of 15 registrations 
identified:   

• 7/15 were registered within three 
weeks of receipt of the information; 

• 3/15 were registered between 189 
and 263 days after receipt (relating 
to S106 Agreements). This was due 
to the Land Charges Team not 
knowing how to register these types 
on the system. Training has now 
been delivered, a procedure note is 
in place and through the testing we 
have confirmed that more recent 
S106 Agreements are now being 
updated within a few working days. 
Therefore, it is considered that this 
has been addressed; and  

• 5/15 were registered between 30 
and 215 days after notification with 
no particular reason. A potential 
explanation given by the Senior 
Land Charges Officer was that the 
notification was misplaced amongst 
paperwork.  

There is currently no defined filing 
system. A spreadsheet was previously 
used to keep track of 

Medium We will hold a team meeting 
to review the current filing 
system and implement a 
system to be able to keep 
track of notifications 
received.   

As soon as a new 
registration notification is 
received this will be filed in a 
dedicated folder in order of 
date received. When the 
notifications are reviewed, 
any which are identified as 
being incomplete will be filed 
in a separate folder so that 
they are not mixed up with 
complete notifications which 
are awaiting registration.   

We will re-introduce the use 
of the tracking spreadsheet 
and use this to keep track of 
registration and removal 
notifications which have 
been received and the 
progress made in entering 
them on to the system. 

30 September 
2018 

Senior Land 
Charges 
Officer 

Page 15 of 31

33



 

  South Kesteven District Council Land Charges 8.18/19 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

agreements/notifications received 
which have yet to be logged. We were 
informed by the Senior Land Charges 
Officer that this spreadsheet is no 
longer used.  

There is a risk that the Land Charges 
register is not accurate or up-to-date. 
This could lead to incorrect 
information being provided to search 
applicants which could potentially 
have significant effects for the 
customer. In addition, it may also 
result in reputational damage or 
financial loss to the Council under 
section 10 of the Local Land Charges 
Act 1975, which entitles customers to 
claim compensation for suffering 
effects of incorrect registry information 
provided to them. 

3 Missing control  

There is no 
independent check or 
review of changes to 
the register to confirm 
that the change has 
been made 
appropriately or 
accurately. 

No - It was noted that there is no 
independent review of registrations or 
removals to the register which have 
been made and it was confirmed by 
the Senior Land Charges Officer that 
there is no control in place to prevent 
or detect changes which have been 
made inaccurately or inappropriately.  

Inaccurate, incorrect or inappropriate 
changes to the register may not be 
identified without an independent 
review. This could lead to incorrect 
information being provided to 
customers. 

Medium Changes made to the 
register will be independently 
reviewed to supporting 
documentation and checked 
for accuracy by another 
member of the team, after 
the change has been made. 

Evidence of the independent 
review taking place will be 
documented on the 
Registrations Spreadsheet 
with the name of the person 
who made the change and 
details of reviewer and date. 

30 September 
2018 

Senior Land 
Charges 
Officer 

Page 16 of 31

34



 

  South Kesteven District Council Land Charges 8.18/19 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

4 The fees are set by 
Council as part of the 
annual budget setting 
process and the correct, 
approved fees are 
communicated and 
charged to applicants. 

Yes No We have identified that incorrect fees 
are being communicated for a number 
of services. We have been able to 
confirm that the correct 2018/19 
search fees are published on the 
website; the out of date fees relate to 
registrations which the Council does 
not charge for.  

However, this could lead to confusion 
amongst customers and lead to the 
Land Charges Team having to 
unnecessarily spend time answering 
queries. This has already been 
identified by the Senior Land Charges 
Officer.   

Communicating incorrect fee 
information could lead to confusion 
amongst customers which could lead 
to a waste of staff time answering 
customer queries relating to those 
fees.    

Low We will continue to chase 
the IT and Finance Teams to 
review, approve and update 
the website with the current 
fees and to clarify the 
wording of the web page. 

31 December 
2018 

Senior Land 
Charges 
Officer 

Page 17 of 31

35



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

1.1 Background  
An audit of Members Allowances and Expenses has been undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic 
plan for 2018/19.  

There are 56 Councillors (Members) in total representing the South Kesteven District as at 31 March 2018. The 
Council pays all its Members a Basic Allowance. This relates to the work they all do as local Ward Councillors, 
representing their constituents and as Members of the Council. In addition, Special Responsibility Allowance is also 
paid for serving as a Cabinet Member, being Chairman or Vice Chairman, Leader of the Council or the Leader of the 
Opposition. 

In accordance with Regulations, the Council is required to review its scheme of Members Allowances every four years. 
An Independent Remuneration Panel makes recommendations to the Council on the level of allowances to be paid to 
elected Members of the Council and other non-elected people such as co-opted Members. The Members Allowances 
and Expenses were last reviewed by the Independent Remuneration Panel in October 2017 and the recommendations 
of the Panel were approved at the Full Council meeting on 23 November 2017.  

Allowances paid to Members are also increased annually by the same percentage factor as the National Joint Council 
for Local Government Services (NJC) pay award.  

The Council’s Members Allowances and Expenses claims are all checked and authorised by the Democratic Services 
Team before being passed to the Exchequer Services Team for processing the payment. All Members Allowances and 
Expenses are paid processed through the Council’s payroll system.  

Members Allowances and Expenses paid during the year 2017/18 amounted to £465,530 (2016/17 £376,304). The 
figure includes Basic Allowance, Special Responsibility and other related allowances. 

1.2 Conclusion  
This review has confirmed that South Kesteven District Council has in place adequate controls surrounding Members 
Allowances and Expenses and that these controls are sufficiently complied with. However, we identified some 
weakness in the controls and have agreed two ‘medium’ and one ‘low’ category management actions.  

The ‘medium’ category management actions are in relation to the Members Allowances and Expenses paid to 
Members in 2017/18 are yet to be published on the Council’s website, and expense claims being submitted for periods 
ranging between two and three months, and members not being reminded claims outside the time limit for submission 
may not be paid.    

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 
the organisation relies to manage the identified risk(s) are 
suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 
effectively. 

 

MEMBERS ALLOWANCES & EXPENSES – EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

Page 18 of 31

36



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

1.3 Key findings 
The key findings from this review are as follows: 

• Procedure notes are in place, up to date and made available to staff for the processing of Members’ Allowances 
and Expenses. 

• Processing Members’ Travel and Subsistence Claims procedures are in place. The procedures provide guidance 
to the Democratic Services Team from checking the claim form, accuracy of claim, checking mileage and 
subsistence claims, authorising the claim and sending to Exchequer Services for payment; 

• Testing confirmed that each year when the allowances are reviewed and updated, these are then sent to payroll 
for updating the payroll records. For the year 2018/19, testing confirmed that the correct Basic Allowances and 
Speciality Responsibility Allowances are being paid; 

• Broadband costs are paid on receipt of a bill and is then continued at that same rate until a Councillor amends it 
whereupon they are required to provide new details. Review of the payroll reports for the period April 2018, May 
2018, August 2018 and September 2018 confirmed that the Broadband Allowance is claimed by Members and the 
maximum paid is £21.99 per month; 

• A standard claim form is in place for Members to claim their expenses. Travelling Expenses Guidance for elected 
Members and non-elected co-opted Members is included on the back of the claim form. Guidance includes 
travelling expenses, subsistence expenses and vehicle insurance. The claim form was last updated in March 
2014; 

• Members’ expense claim forms are received by Democratic Services. On receipt, the form is checked by a 
member of the Democratic Team to ensure that the claim is valid. The claim form is then signed, dated and 
passed to Exchequer Services for processing. For a sample of 20 Members, testing of the 47 claims made by 
these Members during the period 1 April 2018 to 31 August 2018 established that in all instances the claim form 
was signed and dated to confirm this check;  

• For the same sample, testing established that in 10 instances other expenses were incurred and claimed. Testing 
confirmed that in all 10 instances the receipt was provided and was held on file with the claim;  

• For the period 1 April 2018 to 31 August 2018, testing confirmed that there was segregation of duties in the 
checking and authorisation of the claim to the input of the expenses claims and the checking and signing off of the 
payroll; 

• A spreadsheet is maintained of the allowances by the Senior Exchequer Services Officer. The spreadsheet details 
the allowances and what is payable each year for each post. The spreadsheet is provided to Democratic Services 
to check it and Democratic Services normally email payroll if there are any changes; and 

• Testing for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 August 2018 established that Payroll check the payroll reports. The 
reviewer signs and dates the report to confirm the review. 

However, testing identified the following weakness and as a result we have agreed two ‘medium’ and one ‘low’ priority 
management actions: 

• In accordance with public disclosure requirements, all Members Allowances and Expenses claimed are required to 
be published by the Council on its website and in the local press and are to be made available for scrutiny.  
However, on review of the Council’s website it was established that this information is yet to be published for 
2017/18;  

Page 19 of 31

37



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

• For a sample of 20 Members, testing of the 47 claims made by these Members during the period 1 April 2018 to 
31 August 2018 established that the claims were not being made on a timely basis; and 

• Members Allowances were increased from 1 April 2018 in line with the NJC pay award however it was noted that 
the Constitution has not been updated to reflect this change.  

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

 

Risk Control 
design not 
effective*

Non-
Compliance 

with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Payment of allowances and expenses are 
not adequately documented in procedures. 0 (6) 1 (6) 1 0 0 

Expenses claims are not made on official 
forms or approved prior to processing. 0 (6) 1 (6) 0 1 0 

Management information is not being 
produced to monitor allowances and 
expenses being paid. 

0 (4) 1 (4) 0 1 0 

Total  
 

1 2 0 

Page 20 of 31

38



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality.

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines.

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those risks of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Risk: Payment of allowances and expenses are not adequately documented in procedures. 

1 The Allowances are 
published to the 
Members in the 
Council’s Constitution 
and are updated when 
changes are made to 
the Allowances 
payable. 

Yes No The Allowances are included in the 
Council’s Constitution.     

On review it was noted that Members 
Allowances were reviewed in November 
2017 and were backdated to September 
2017. The Constitution was updated 
with the revised Allowances at the same 
time.    

Members Allowances are also subject 
to an annual increase in line with the 
pay award. It was noted that although 
this increase was applied to the 
Members Allowance paid from 1 April 
2018 the Constitution was not updated 
to reflect the revised Members 
Allowances.  

Low a) The Constitution will 
be updated to reflect the 
pay award increase 
applied from 1 April 
2018; and  

b) Going forward the 
Constitution will be 
update on a timely basis 
following an increase in 
the Allowances. 

31 October 2018 Solicitor to the 
Council 
(Assistant 
Director)  

Page 21 of 31

39



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

There is a risk that up to date 
information is not provided to the staff 
and members of the public on Members 
Allowances. 

Page 22 of 31

40



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Risk: Expenses claims are not made on official forms or approved prior to processing.

2 The timescales and 
deadlines for claiming 
allowances and 
expenses are 
documented and 
communicated to the 
Members.  The Claim 
form also states that 
where possible the 
claims should be made 
on a monthly basis.  
Expense claims are 
made on a regular and 
timely basis (soon after 
the month end). 

Yes No For a sample of 20 Members, testing of 
the 47 claims made by these Members 
during the period 1 April 2018 to 31 
August 2018 established that:   

a) In two instances the claim was for a 
period of two months; and  

b) In two instances the claim was for a 
period of three months.  

The claim form does state that “all claim 
forms must be completed on a monthly 
basis wherever possible”.  

There is an increased risk of errors 
occurring where claims for expenses 
are not made a timely basis. The time 
taken to check the claim also increases 
as records/information may not be 
readily available to confirm the claim. 

Medium a) Members will be 
reminded to submit 
expense claims on a 
regular and timely basis 
(soon after the end of the 
month);  

 b) Members will be 
reminded that payment 
may not be made for 
claims submitted outside 
of the approved 
timeframes (soon after 
the end of the month); 
and       

c) Where the claim form 
states “all claim forms 
must be completed on a 
monthly basis wherever 
possible” this will be 
amended to state, “all 
claim forms must be 
completed on a monthly 
basis”. 

31 October 2018 Solicitor to the 
Council 
(Assistant 
Director) 

3 Details of the claim 
including to, from, 
return, description of 
approved duties, lead 
officer who organised 
the meeting or training, 
period of attendance, 
no of miles travelled 
and rate, travelling 
allowance claimed, 
taxable subsistence 

Yes No For a sample of 20 Members, testing of 
the 47 claims made by these Members 
during the period 1 April 2018 to 31 
August 2018 established that:    

a) In all cases the claim form was fully 
completed;    

b) The claim form was signed and dated 
by the Member making the claim; and   

c) It was noted that two Members had 
recorded the date on the claim form 

- See control three for 
management action. 

- - 

Page 23 of 31

41



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

allowance claimed, and 
non-taxable allowance 
claimed are recorded 
on the form. The forms 
are signed and dated by 
the claimant. 

incorrectly. The claim forms were dated 
3 August 2018 and 10 July 2018 
however the claim forms were received 
on, checked and authorised for payment 
on 2 August 2018 and 9 July 2018 
respectively.    

There is a risk that the claim forms may 
be retrospectively signed and dated. 

Risk: Management information is not being produced to monitor allowances and expenses being paid.

4 As required by the 2003 
Regulations, the 
Council have published 
details of all the 
amounts paid to each 
Councillor for the 
previous year. 
Members’ expenses for 
the year ended 31 
March 2018 have been 
collated and published 
by the Council.  This is 
published on the 
Council's website and 
can be accessed by 
members of the public 
without restriction. 

Yes No A review of the Council’s website 
established that:   

a) The details of the payments made to 
the Members during the year 2016/17 is 
published on the website. This 
information is published after the year 
end accounts have been published on 
the Council’s website; and   

b) The year-end accounts for 2017/18 
were signed off by the external auditor 
on 30 July 2018 and were thereafter 
published on the Council’s website. It 
was however noted that the details of 
the payments for the year 2017/18 are 
yet to be published.  

There is a risk that the details of the 
actual allowances paid to Members may 
not be published and on a timely basis 
on the Council’s website as required by 
the 2003 Regulations the Local 
Authorities (Members Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003. 

Medium a) Following review by 
the Assistant Director 
Resources, the Members 
Expenses report for 
2017/18 will be published 
on the Council’s website; 
and     

b) Going forward, the 
Members Expenses 
report will be published 
soon after the publication 
of the Council’s approved 
year-end financial 
accounts. 

Management Comment 

Evidence was provided 
by the client to show that 
an email was sent to 
‘Communications’ on 31 
August 2018 with the 
2017/18 Members 
Allowances on for them 
to publish on the 
Council’s website. This 
action however was not 

31 October 2018 Assistant Director 
Resources 

Page 24 of 31

42



 

  South Kesteven District Council Members Allowances and Expenses 9.18/19  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

completed at the time of 
the audit (week ending 4 
October 2018) but has 
since been completed. 

Page 25 of 31

43



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchase Orders and Creditors 10.18/19  

1.1 Background  
An audit of Purchase Orders and Creditors was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 
2018/19. 

The Council have in place a procurement module that is embedded within the finance system.. The system allows 
orders to be requested and approved electronically by authorised staff throughout the Council. Orders are raised and 
approved in line with the established scheme of delegated authority.  

Invoices are processed daily within the Exchequer Services Department and are matched to corresponding purchase 
orders. Invoices matched through the eProcurement system are authorised for payment. Non-purchase order invoices, 
such as utilities, are batched and authorised for payment within the relevant service area. Since April 2018, Exchequer 
Services have processed 7,511 purchase invoices, totalling £18,484,130.26. 

As part of the audit work, we have utilised IDEA (Interactive Data Extraction and Analysis) software as part of our work 
on payroll. IDEA is a Computer Assisted Audit Tool (CAAT) used to analyse large amounts of data to determine any 
trends or exceptions not able to be determined through ordinary sample testing. This subsequently may establish 
whether any control improvements are required as a result of unexpectedly large quantities or values of discrepancies. 
 

1.2 Conclusion  
The review of Purchase Orders and Creditors identified that overall the control framework is well designed and 
operating effectively. However, two weakness in compliance with the established control framework have been 
identified which has resulted in one medium and one low priority management actions being raised. The reported 
exceptions relate to the raising of retrospective purchase orders and the completion of monthly control account 
reconciliations.  

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 
the Council relies to manage the identified risk(s) are 
suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 
effectively. 

 

1.3 Key findings 
The key findings from this review are as follows: 

Our audit review identified that the following controls are suitably designed, consistently applied and are operating 
effectively: 

• The Financial Regulations include guidance on purchasing and creditor responsibilities. The Financial Regulations 
were last reviewed in July 2018 and are published on the Council’s intranet. 

• Procedural documentation is in place covering the day-to-day purchasing and creditor payment functions. 
Procedure notes were found to have been maintained up to date and reflective of current working practices.  

PURCHASE ORDERS AND CREDITORS - EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

Page 26 of 31

44



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchase Orders and Creditors 10.18/19  

• Access to the finance system is restricted to authorised staff. Authorisation levels for purchasing and authorisation 
of purchase orders have been established within the system. Current users within the system are regularly reviewed 
to ensure leavers are removed in a timely manner. 

• An authorised signatories list is maintained within the Finance Department which is subject to regular review. 

• A monthly ‘Orders Dashboard’ report is run by the Accountancy Team for all service areas which are e-mailed to all 
Budget Holders along with a budget monitoring report. The report details the total number of orders split between ‘in 
time’ and ‘retrospective’ and shows the percentage of retrospective orders raised for each month and year to date. 

• Goods or services received are immediately recorded as having been received on the finance system. Purchase 
invoices received are matched to the purchase order and goods received note prior to payment. 

• Invoices are only paid if the goods/services have been recorded as being received, and the value is within a defined 
five percent or £100 of the original purchase order value. If not, additional approval in line with delegated authority 
limits is required. 

• Reports identifying any invoices-on-hold, new suppliers and aged creditor balances are produced and reviewed 
monthly.  

• Invoices received that are exempt from raising a purchase order are processed manually by the Finance 
Department.  

• Credit notes are processed on the finance system in a timely manner by the Finance Department.  

• Monthly budget monitoring reports are produced by the Accountancy Team and e-mailed to all Service Managers 
providing them a breakdown of expenditure for their service area. 

 

However, the following areas of non-compliance with the established control framework were identified: 

• Testing a sample of 20 paid purchase invoices found seven instances where a purchase order had been raised 
after an order for goods or services had been placed with the relevant supplier.  

• Testing five months of creditor account reconciliations (April 2018 to August 2018) identified one instance where a 
monthly reconciliation had not been completed. Furthermore, two instances were noted where it could not be 
confirmed that the reconciliation had been completed in a timely manner. 

 

We have also undertaken IDEA testing on key data sets, with the results being presented to management for further 
investigation. The results of this work are provided in Appendix A. 

 

 

 

 

Page 27 of 31

45



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchase Orders and Creditors 10.18/19  

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

 

Risk Control 
design not 
effective*

Non-
Compliance 
with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Financial loss to the Council through 
unnecessary and unapproved invoices 
being paid. 

0 (15) 2 (15) 1 1 0 

Total  
 

1 1 0 

Page 28 of 31

46



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchase Orders and Creditors 10.18/19  

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality.

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines.

 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those risks of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Risk: Financial loss to the Council through unnecessary and unapproved invoices being paid. 

1 The credit control 
account is reconciled to 
the general ledger on a 
monthly basis.   

The reconciliation is 
prepared by the 
Finance and System 
Support Officer, before 
being reviewed and 
signed off by the 
Financial Accountant 
Team Leader.  

Yes No A sample of the last five months 
credit control account reconciliations 
were selected and tested (April 2018 
to August 2018).   

Two instances were noted where 
monthly reconciliations had been 
completed and reviewed in a timely 
manner, with supporting evidence 
being maintained on file (June 2018 
and July 2018). However, the 
following issues were noted:    

• April 2018 - The reconciliation had 
not been dated by the preparer or 
reviewer to evidence when it was 

Low We will ensure that all 
credit control account 
reconciliations are 
prepared and reviewed in 
a timely manner following 
month end.     

All credit control account 
reconciliations will be 
dated by both the 
preparer and reviewer. 

30 November 
2018 

Financial 
Accountant Team 
Leader 

Page 29 of 31

47



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchase Orders and Creditors 10.18/19  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

All discrepancies are 
investigated and 
resolved. 

produced and independently 
reviewed;   
 

• May 2018 - The reconciliation had 
not been dated by the reviewer to 
evidence when it was 
independently reviewed; and 
   

• August 2018 – The reconciliation 
could not be tested as it had not 
been completed at the time of 
audit (October 2018).    

Where reconciliations are not dated 
by both preparer and reviewer, it is 
not possible to confirm that the 
reconciliations had been prepared 
and reviewed in a timely manner. In 
addition, if credit control account 
reconciliations are not prepared and 
reviewed in a timely manner 
following month end, there is a risk 
of errors or omissions not being 
identified. 

2 Purchase orders are 
raised on the finance 
system for all 
purchases and 
authorised in line with 
the delegated authority 
limits defined within the 
authorised signatory 
listing.  

If the goods or services 
invoiced are disputed, 

Yes No A sample of 20 paid invoices from 
the current financial year were 
selected and tested.  

It was confirmed that in all instances 
a valid purchase order had been 
requisitioned which had been 
appropriately approved in line with 
delegated authority limits.    

Medium We will implement a new 
intelligent scanning 
software (DB-Capture) 
which will streamline the 
purchasing process and 
identify repeat offenders 
of retrospective purchase 
orders.   

Repeat offenders will be 
reminded of the 
importance of ensuring a 

31 March 2019 Financial 
Accountant Team 
Leader 

Page 30 of 31

48



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchase Orders and Creditors 10.18/19  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

the invoice is returned 
to the supplier for 
investigation.  

However, it was noted in seven 
instances that a purchase order had 
been raised retrospectively.  

If purchase orders are not raised 
and approved prior to the ordering of 
goods or services from suppliers, 
there is a risk that inappropriate 
orders may be placed resulting in 
financial loss to the Council. 

purchase order is raised 
prior to the ordering of 
goods or services from 
suppliers. 

Page 31 of 31

49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT 
COUNCIL 
Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2019/20 
Presented at the Governance and Audit 
Committee meeting of: 13 December 2018 
 

51

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit indicative plan 2019/20 | 1 

CONTENTS 
1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2   Internal audit indicative plan 2019/20 ........................................................................................................................... 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit indicative plan 2019/20 | 2 

1.1 Background 
The Council’s internal audit plan comprises a Strategic Plan which incorporates a three year cycle of proposed internal 
audit assignments. On an annual basis the Strategic Plan is revisited and an annual internal audit plan for the 
forthcoming financial year is devised and agreed with the Governance and Audit Committee and the Council’s Senior 
Management Team. The 2018/19 annual internal audit plan was presented to the Governance and Audit Committee 
on 22 March 2018. This document also included a Strategic Plan covering the years 2018/19 to 2020/21. 

As part of the early stage development of the annual internal audit plan for 2019/20, we have extracted the indicative 
plan from the March 2018 document and this is presented to the Committee in Section 2 for early comment. We 
recognise that the Council’s risk profile is likely to have changed and the 2019/20 plan will require updating and 
detailed discussions with the Senior Management Team. 

Following input from the Governance and Audit Committee and Senior Management Team, the updated 2019/20 
internal audit plan will be presented to the Committee meeting on 21 March 2019 for review and final approval. 

1.2 Governance and Audit Committee Input 
We would welcome input from the Governance and Audit Committee or individual members. We will then incorporate 
this input into the development of the 2019/20 internal audit plan. 

Section 2 of this report sets out the individual internal audit areas proposed for inclusion in 2019/20 and will be 
supplemented by the annual allocations of time relating to the follow up of previously agreed management actions, 
RSM management time and a contingent element set aside to deal with matters arising in-year. 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 
Our approach to developing your internal audit plan is based on analysing your corporate 
objectives, risk profile and assurance framework as well as other, factors affecting South Kesteven 
District Council in the year ahead, including changes within the wider public sector.  

53



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit indicative plan 2019/20 | 3 

Audit High Level Scope for 
2019/20 

  

Strategic 

Risk Management Consideration of the current risk management framework and arrangements which will 
include the risk management strategy, business areas approach to risk, risk register, 
reporting of risk and mitigations, review and update of the risk registers. Information 
report to management and committees. 

Transformation and Change 

Flexible Working To provide assurance that the Council has policies and procedures in place which 
allows flexible working, to ensure that risk assessments have been undertaken, staff 
have been provided with relevant training and systems are in place to stay in touch with 
staff. 

Programmes and 
Performance Management 

This review will focus on how programmes are linked to the Council’s plans and 
priorities. Our review will include ownership of programmes and performance 
management, data collection and the roles of responsibilities in relation to programmes 
and performance management. 

Apprenticeship – 
Learning and 
Development 

To provide assurance that the Council’s apprenticeship programme is working 
effectively to provide opportunities for individuals to work for the Council to gain 
necessary skills and experience on their chosen career path.  

Document Management 
and CRM 

To ensure that there is an adequate control framework in place governing the operation 
of the Document Management and CRM system. The review will ensure that accurate 
and complete data is being recorded and retained within the CRM system and that 
there is good customer satisfaction. 

Resources 

Council Tax Our audit will provide assurance that procedures in relation to Council Tax are followed 
and correct charges are being applied and will include identification and recording of 
persons liable for Council Tax, billing methods and payment collection, recovery and 
writes offs, segregation of duties, exemptions, discounts and refunds. 

Code of Conduct To ensure that the organisation maintains and monitors effective Governance 
arrangements in line with documented guidance and regulations. 

Procurement and 
Contracts 

We will focus on whether policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards 
obtaining tenders and quotations, and the level of due diligence performed on potential 
new suppliers. We will also review the level of contractor performance management 
undertaken across the Council, and how this results in payments being made to 
contractors.We will review pre, mid and post contract processes for each of the 
sampled contracts. 

IT Review  To review the processes employed by the Council and for the management of risks in 
relation to the Council’s IT network. Detailed scope to be agreed with management. 

2   INTERNAL AUDIT INDICATIVE PLAN 2019/20 

54



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit indicative plan 2019/20 | 4 

Audit High Level Scope for 
2019/20 

  

Housing 

Homelessness We will focus our audit on whether the Council’s policies and procedures are designed 
to limit homelessness and housing problems where possible, and that the districts 
housing stock is subject to review to determine where potential issues may arise in the 
future. We will also include a review of the processes in place for the provision of 
temporary and emergency accommodation; how eligibility is assessed and the 
accommodation is paid for. 

Housing Allocations To ensure that properties are utilised effectively for housing applicants who meet 
proscribed criteria as per documented policies and procedures and in line with statutory 
requirements. 

Void Management A sound system of internal controls is in place governing void management and is 
conducive to efficient and effective operational practice. Systems are in place to ensure 
void properties are re-let in a timely manner and that any required repairs and 
decoration are conducted to ensure the organisation's empty homes service standard is 
met.   

Commercial & Operational 

Enforcement We will seek to ensure that the Council’s enforcement action is undertaken in 
accordance with procedure, and legal advice is obtained where appropriate to ensure 
compliance with Council decisions and legislation.  

Houses in Multiple 
Occupation 

To ensure the Council are complying with legislation and have procedure in place to 
identify, licence and monitor Houses in Multiple Occupation within the District. 

Street Scene – Trade 
Waste 

This review will ensure that operational procedures are fit for purpose and are complied 
with. We will also ensure that income is collected appropriately and accouhnted for. 

Growth  

Car Parks To ensure the Councils car park provision is reviewed to determine whether the 
requirements of users are being met, and also that each facility has been risk 
assessed. We will include a review of the signage in place at each car park, ensuring 
this reflects the Council statutory responsibilities, the approved fees and charges for 
parking and complaints. We will also include a review of the contract in place for the 
provision of car park enforcement. 

Economic Development To provide assurance that the grants are being used for approved projects, and also 
that the benefits realised by the grant are identified and reported. We will also include a 
review of the application and approval process for obtaining a grant or a loan from the 
Council. 

55



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit indicative plan 2019/20 | 5 

Other internal audit activity 

Contingency To allow additional reviews to be undertaken in agreement with the Governance and 
Audit Committee or management based in changes in risk profile or assurance needs 
as they arise during the year.  

Follow up To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide assurance on action taken to 
address previously agreed management actions. 

Management  This will include: 

• Annual planning; 
• Preparation for, and attendance at, Governance and Audit Committee; 
• Regular liaison and progress updates; 
• Liaison with external audit and other assurance providers; and 
• Preparation of the annual opinion. 

   

 

56



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

13 December 2018

Review of fraud prevention activities (CFM481) 

Decision
Proposal: N/A

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Nova Roberts – Head of Customer Experience
01476 406506 – nova.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk
29 November 2018

Richard Wyles – Assistant Director Resources
01476 406210 – r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
29 November 2018

Debbie Muddimer – Strategic Director Resources
01476 406301 – debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
30 November 2018

Councillor Adam Stokes – Cabinet Member for Finance
30 November 2018

SUMMARY

At the meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee on 20 September 2018 members 
were presented with the Annual Counter Fraud Report 2017/18.  At the request of the 
Committee a further report has been compiled detailing the specific preventative fraud 
activities that the Council undertakes.

RECOMMENDATION

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and 
where appropriate make specific comments or recommendations with respect to current 
range of counter fraud initiatives.

57

Agenda Item 9

mailto:nova.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 Introduction 

1.1.1  The Council is committed to the highest standards of quality, probity, openness 
and accountability.  This report sets out the key outcomes from welfare/benefit 
fraud and explains the nature of all data matching undertaken. 

1.2 Summary of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Fraud Performance

1.2.1   Fraud cases are identified in numerous different ways with referrals coming from 
various sources.  A primary channel is through joint working with the Department 
of Work and Pensions. The Council is currently undertaking joint working on 
several cases where there has been an allegation of fraud against a claimant 
within the district that is claiming Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax Discount. 
Fraud cases can also be referred from other departments within the Council.  This 
could include, but is not limited to, the Income Recovery Team, Visiting Officers 
or Housing Officers.  It is also possible for referrals to come from other authorities. 
Whistleblowing from members of the public also plays a crucial part in combatting 
fraud within the Housing Benefit system.  Referrals can be made online, via email 
and via the phone.

1.2.2  To help Councils combat fraud there are several data matching tools, which are 
outlined in more detail in this report that can assist.  These tools are invaluable 
in identifying claimants that are receiving Housing Benefit/Council Tax Discount 
when they are not entitled to.  All work in relation to fraud referrals is carried out 
within the Benefits Team, including identifying the overpayments and the 
recovery of overpayments created as a result of the fraud.

1.2.3  The table below provides a summary of activity within this area for 2017/18 and 
year to date:

Year 2018/19 
ongoing 2017/18

No. cases 16 12

Housing Benefit overpayment £33,209.71 £37,838.35

Council Tax Discount overpayment £3,957.78 £1,126.08

Total £37,167.49 £38,964.43

Number of sanctions* - 4

Sanction: Housing Benefit/Council Tax 
Discount overpayment value - £2,600.15

*Sanctions include an administrative penalty or a prosecution.

58



 1.3 Single Person Discount Review

 1.3.1    For Council tax purposes, residents can apply for Single Persons Discount 
(SPD) should they be the sole occupier of a property.  In respect of this 
Council, 19,489 households are currently in receipt of SPD, this represents 
30.96% of the total households in the district.  SPD is an annual discount of 
25% off the Council Tax bill which, in financial terms, equates to an overall 
reduction of £6.6m in the total Council Tax liability.   

1.3.2   Residents who wish to apply for SPD are asked to complete a declaration 
confirming that they are the only adult resident in the property and that they 
are eligible to claim the discount. 

1.3.3    The Council’s primary approach for checking SPD entitlement is to participate 
biennially in a county wide counter fraud review alongside all Lincolnshire 
authorities.  

1.3.4     The process for this includes taking a data extract from the Council Tax records 
of accounts in receipt of SPD.  This data is then put through a screening 
process to identify accounts which may be claiming SPD, where they are not 
entitled to, highlighting accounts where contact is needed. The results of the 
exercise identified 19.52% of all SPD claimants that were subsequently 
contacted in order for them to validate their entitlement.  

1.3.5    2018 SPD Managed Service Review Summary (at 7 November 2018)

Council Screened Contacted Removals Removal 
rate

Revenues 
from SPD 

review

Total 
estimated 
revenues 
generated

South 
Kesteven 15,105* 2,950 772 5.10% £250k £250k

Lincolnshire 
Total 74,961 15,591 3,652 Average 

5% £1.36m £1.414m

*Accounts in receipt of Council Tax Discount are not included in the screening process.

1.3.6    The cost of the review is split between partners based on the proportionate 
level of the Council Tax. The review is nearing completion when the full cost 
will be known to the Lincolnshire authorities.  It is also worth noting that the 
total estimated revenue generated is a gross figure and is not all retained by 
the Council.  The figure that is retained by the Council is around 10%.

1.3.7    There is currently a feasibility study being carried out by Lincolnshire partners 
to investigate the potential of utilising third party expertise to undertake a rolling 
review of SPD and a referral system for Single Person Discount. It is suggested 
that this could highlight further accounts that are fraudulently claiming SPD. 
This study, which is being led by the Lincolnshire County Council Counter 
Fraud Partnership, is expected to be completed in the new year.  

59



1.4 Data Matching Undertaken

1.4.1 Verify Earnings and Pensions (VEP)

1.4.2   VEP is the strategic tool to support the accurate administration of Housing Benefit 
(HB) in respect of a claimant’s earnings and pensions.  Earnings related Fraud & 
Error is the highest contributor towards published Fraud & Error statistics. The 
most recent national statistics showed that earnings make up 2.9% of the 6.5% 
figure. This equates to £634 million pounds of overpayment. As at February 2018, 
earnings cases made up 22% of the HB caseload nationally.

1.4.3   VEP provides the Council with real time information in respect of a HB claimant’s, 
or their partner’s, earnings and/or personal pension. This enables the prevention 
of overpayments. 

1.4.4  From June 2018, the VEP service has provided alerts to local authorities to prompt 
them to access the service where there is a change in a claimant’s/ partner’s 
employment or pension. The alerts are sent daily and are updated to ensure local 
authorities receive the best alerts provided in ranked order.

1.4.5  The Council ensures that all VEP alerts are actioned in a timely manner and they 
are usually undertaken daily where possible.  If there is any need to suspend the 
claim, to prevent further overpayment, this will be done by a member of the 
Benefits Team. Any overpayments that are created, as a result of VEP 
processing, are recoverable and would be recovered using the existing guidelines 
in place.  Notification letters are sent to advise customers where there has been 
a change in entitlement.   

1.4.6 Real Time Information (RTI)

1.4.7 RTI is the tactical tool (prior to the VEP rollout) to support the accurate 
administration of HB in respect of a claimant’s earnings.  It provides RTI for HB 
claimant’s, or their partner’s earnings, and/or personal pension. 

1.4.8 Cases are produced where claimants have either failed to declare, or have under-
declared earnings, and/or personal pension. The cases are ranked by highest 
value in terms of the discrepancy between earnings and/or personal pension 
declared on local authority IT systems and HMRC records. This enables local 
authorities to review cases and, where appropriate, prevent future overpayments.

1.4.9  The Council loads RTI files received from the DWP into the Revenues and 
Benefits system monthly. These are then processed, and any over/under 
payments will be dealt with accordingly under Housing Benefit legislation.

1.4.10 Automated Transfer to Local Authority Systems (ATLAS)

1.4.11 ATLAS provides daily updates, via the Data Hub, with the following:

a) HMRC Tax Credit (Working Tax Credit and Child Tax Credit) revisions, which 
is one of the main sources of incomes for HB recipients  

60



b) Notifications of DWP benefit changes are received within 48 hours, allowing 
for the prompt and efficient reassessment of HB claims.

1.4.12 ATLAS helps solve claimant error by alleviating non-reporting of changes of 
circumstances from HB claimants. It covers most of the caseload which makes it 
a useful tool for identifying fraud and error.

1.4.13 ATLAS files are loaded into the Revenues & Benefits system daily and are then 
allocated to staff in a priority order.  The work required will vary depending on the 
type of notification received.  However, if there are any overpayments created as 
a result they will be recovered using the standard recovery procedures that are 
currently in place.  Alternatively, if there is any underpayment created as a result 
this will be paid if there is an entitlement to the underpayment under the Housing 
Benefit regulations. 

1.4.14 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

1.4.15 Data for the NFI is provided by some 1,300 participating organisations from 
across the public and private sectors. The data is cross matched and compared 
to key data sets provided by other participants, including government 
departments. The NFI matches Housing Benefits, and Council Tax, records 
against multiple data sources including student loans data, immigration data, 
payroll data, housing tenancy data and data that can indicate earnings such as 
taxi driver licence holders. The matches may identify where a person is claiming 
a benefit that they are not entitled to.

1.4.16 NFI is a bi-annual exercise for HB claimants, and annual for Council Tax Single 
Person Discount, that matches electronic data within and between public and 
private sector bodies to prevent and detect fraud. It is operated by the Cabinet 
Office and has been in existence for more than 20 years.

1.4.17 The data matches for HB are being released on 31 January 2019 and Council 
Tax SPD mid December 2018.

1.4.18 Self-Employed Review 

1.4.19 The self-employed review data ‘plugs’ a previous gap providing information to 
support a review of self-employed cases where the HB claimant’s, and/or 
partner’s, declared earnings have remained unchanged for over 12 months. 

1.4.20 This is a new initiative, launched in September 2018, to further support local 
authorities in tackling earnings-related fraud and error within the self-employment 
caseload.

1.4.21 The data helps local authorities in targeting those cases requiring a review, 
ensuring early intervention, which avoids more resource intensive intervention 
further down the line.

1.5 Conclusion

1.5.1 Counter fraud is fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its strategic 
objectives. In summary, the Council has a number of national and local 

61



processes in place which help to identify and tackle fraud. This is underpinned 
by a robust Counter Fraud Strategy which is regularly reviewed and updated to 
ensure it is in line with current legislation and best practice.  

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 None.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ 
budget, people, land/property etc.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 None.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 None.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 As part of a robust corporate governance framework, it is important that the
Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy reflects best practice as set out in the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption and is reviewed 
on a regular basis to monitor the outcomes of the strategy and its effectiveness.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 None.

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 Counter Fraud Annual Report 2017/18 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=3
615&Ver=4

62

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=3615&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=3615&Ver=4


Governance and Audit Committee

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Governance and Audit Committee

13 December 2018

Treasury Management Activity 2018-19 – Mid Year Review 
(CFM475)

Decision
Proposal: Constitutional requirement

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Cllr Adam Stokes – Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Alison Hall-Wright – Head of Financial Services
01476 406208 - alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 23 November 2018

Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406210
Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 23 November 2018 

Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406301
Email: debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 23 November 2018 

Cllr Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance
Date 03 December  2018

SUMMARY
This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
produce regular reports on treasury and debt management operations during the financial 
year.
This report meets the requirements of the CIPFA code of practice on Treasury 
Management (the code)

63

Agenda Item 10

mailto:alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Members of Governance and Audit Committee note and approve 
the contents of the mid-year review of Treasury Management activity for 2018-19

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Treasury Management is the term used to cover the Council's borrowing and 
investment strategies.  The Council has formally adopted the key 
recommendations of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017).  In line with 
the Code the Council has adopted a treasury management policy statement that 
requires regular reports on treasury and debt management operations during the 
financial year.

1.2 Additionally, under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council is 
required to have regard to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance including the 
setting of Prudential Indicators.  Relevant treasury management indicators were 
incorporated into the Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 approved by 
Council on 1st March 2018. All local authorities will be required to prepare an 
additional report, a Capital Strategy report from 2019/2020

1.3 This report is submitted in accordance with these requirements and provides a 
review of treasury management for the period ended 30 September 2018 and 
reviews current developments. The following elements are covered by the report:

 A review of debt management operations

 A review of investment operations

 An update on the treasury management Prudential Code Indicators

 An economic update for the first part of the 2018/19 financial year

1.4 The CIPFA Treasury Management Panel promotes the view that Council’s 
monitor performance at least half yearly. In addition to this, a report by the Audit 
Commission entitled ‘Risk and Return’ identifies the need for Local Authorities to 
report regularly to members in addition to the annual review.

2 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE

DEBT MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Borrowing

2.1 No additional borrowing was required during the first half of 2018/19.  All Council 
borrowing is with the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) and the average rate of 
interest paid on the debt portfolio was 2.78%.  Appendix A shows loans 
outstanding as at 30 September 2018.  Regular reviews are undertaken to 
consider redemption costs of natural maturity against new borrowing to settle the 
outstanding debt early. 

 
2.2 At 30th September 2018, the council had short term borrowing, which is defined 

as borrowing due to be repaid within 365 days, of £3.222m.  This will be repaid 

64



in instalments of £1.611m on 28 March 2019 and 28 September 2019.  The 
average annual rate of interest on these loan repayments is 3.03%.  

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS

2.3 The average size of the investment portfolio for the 6 month period was £78.178m 
compared to an average portfolio size of £69.9m during the same period in 
2017/18. These cash balances include balance sheet reserves and provisions, 
unapplied capital receipts and grants, plus cash arising due to the timing of large 
receipts and payments.

Investment Activity in the period ended 30 September 2018

2.4 The Council operates a diverse portfolio and uses a number of methods to invest 
its reserves which include direct deposit, certificate of deposits, notice accounts 
and money market funds.  As at 30 September 2018 the Council held short term 
investments of £66.474m (specified investments), and £9m long term investment 
(non-specified investments).  The Treasury Management Strategy stipulates that 
the Council should not ordinarily hold more than 35% of investments as non-
specified investments and this was adhered to during the first half of 2018/19.  A 
schedule of investments at 30 September 2018 can be found at Appendix B.

2.5 Short Term Fixed Deposits – In the period ended 30 September 2018 £27m of 
short term fixed deposits were placed; £34m of investments matured within the 
period. 

2.6 Long Term Fixed Deposits – In the period ended 30 September 2018 £2m of long 
term fixed rate building society deposits were placed; with £2m maturing within 
the period.   

2.7 Service Investments: Local Authority Mortgage Scheme - On 20 February 2014 
a fixed rate deposit of £1 million was placed with Lloyds Bank on a 5 year term 
at 2.86% with a maturity date of 20 February 2019 which will be returned to the 
council in full on the maturity date stated.  

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS

2.8 Prudential Code indicators specific to treasury management are designed to 
ensure that treasury management is carried out in accordance with professional 
practice.  Indicators for 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 were approved by Council 
in March 2018 as part of the Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19.

2.9 The 2018/19 indicators and actual figures for the 6 months to 30 September 2018 
are set out at Appendix C.  All investment activity has been maintained within the 
indicator limits.

Economic Update from Link (the Council’s Treasury Advisors)

2.10 The flow of positive economic statistics since the end of the first quarter this year 
has shown that pessimism was overdone about the poor growth in quarter 1 when 
adverse weather caused a temporary downward blip.  Quarter 1 at 0.1% growth 

65



in GDP was followed by a return to 0.4% in quarter 2; quarter 3 is expected to be 
robust at around +0.6% but quarter 4 is expected to weaken from that level.

2.11 At their November meeting, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) repeated their 
well-worn phrase that future Bank Rate increases would be gradual and would 
rise to a much lower equilibrium rate, (where monetary policy is neither 
expansionary of contractionary), than before the crash; indeed they gave a figure 
for this of around 2.5% in ten years’ time but declined to give a medium term 
forecast. However, with so much uncertainty around Brexit, they warned that the 
next move could be up or down, even if there was a disorderly Brexit.

3 AMENDMENTS TO THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018/19

3.1 There are no mid-year policy changes recommended; the details in this report 
update the position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary 
changes already approved.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 None

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 These are stated in the report.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION 

6.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
Financial Risk The treasury strategy has been 

compiled in conjunction with the 
Council’s treasury advisors and is 
monitored by the Committee on a 
regular basis

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

7.1 None.

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

8.1 None.

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

9.1 These are included in the report.

66



10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

10.1 This report provides details of the Councils performance in respect of Treasury 
Management against policy set out as part of the Budget and Policy Framework.  
Members should note the performance, and scrutinise any elements to assist the 
role of the Governance and Audit Committee in its review of the Treasury 
Management Strategy.

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

11.1 None.

12. APPENDICES

12.1 Appendix A – Debt Maturity Analysis
Appendix B – Investment Maturity Analysis
Appendix C – Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

13. BACKGROUND PAPERS

13.1 CFM453 – Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3
463&Ver=4

67

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3463&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3463&Ver=4


APPENDIX A

Debt Maturity Analysis - Public Works Loan Board as at 30 September 2018

Duration Amount    
£000

Less than one year £3,222
Between one and two years £28,222
Between two and five years £9,665
Between five and ten years £16,109
Between ten and fifteen years £16,109
Over fifteen years £27,384
Total £100,711

68



APPENDIX B                

Investment Maturity Analysis

Schedule of Managed Cash Funds

As at 30 September 2018 
£000

Interest Rate                   
%

Short Term Investments
Lloyds Bank 8,540 0.85
Santander 95 Day Notice 6,000 0.90
Close Brothers 5,000 0.97
Qatar National Bank 11,000 1.12
Standard Chartered 95 DN 2,000 0.77
HELABA 3,000 0.70
DBS 3,000 0.80
SLI Liquidity Funds MMF 2,108 variable
LGIM MMF 3,529 variable
BNP Paribas MMF 4,297 variable
Federated Prime MMF 2,000 variable
GSIB 9,000 1.06
Nottingham Building Society 2,000 0.80
West Bromwich Building Society 1,000 0.90
Skipton Building Society 2,000 0.80
Principality BS 1,000 0.73
Principality BS 1,000 0.74

Long term investment
Newcastle BS 2,000 0.92
Cumberland BS 2,000 1.02
Close Brothers Limited 2,000 1.13
Local Authority 2,000 1.35
Goldman Sachs 1,000 1.17
Total 75,474 0.96

Service Investment
Lloyds TSB - LAMS 1,000 2.86
Total 1,000 2.86

69



APPENDIX C

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS

Treasury Management Indicators – Comparison for 2018/19 to actual position for the 6 
months to 30 September 2018.

External debt indicators

Authorised limit 

This represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set and 
revised by members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could 
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable.  It is the expected maximum 
borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements.  This is the statutory 
limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.

Authorised Limit for external debt 2018-19
£000

As at 30 
September 2018 

£000
Debt (non HRA) 38.000 0
HRA Reform 108.765 100.711
Other long term liabilities 0 0
Total 146.765 100.711

Operational boundary

This indicator is based on the probable external debt during the course of the year; it is 
not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around this boundary for short times during 
the year.  It should act as an indicator to ensure the authorised limit is not breached.

Operational Limit for external debt 2018-19
£000

As at 30 
September 2018 

£000
Debt (non HRA) 20.000 0
HRA reform 108.765 100.711
Other long term liabilities 0 0
Total 128.765 100.711

70


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2018
	6 Update on the progress of the frozen pipes issues
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report
	8 Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2019-20
	9 Review of Fraud Prevention Activities
	10 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review



